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AGENDA MEMORANDUM 
City Council Meeting of June 18, 2024 

 

 

DATE: May 15, 2024 
 
TO: Al Raymond, AIA, Director of Development Services 
 

FROM: Bria A. Whitmire, PE, CFM, CPM, ENV SP, Development Services Engineer  
BriaW@cctexas.com  
(361) 826-3268  

 

 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Mitchell Carrillo, PE, on behalf of property owners Linda and John Mikulencak, submitted a request 
for a waiver (Exhibit C) of the plat requirement to pay Wastewater Trust Fund fees associated with 
plat recordation. Section 8.5.2.G states that City Council, with the advice of Planning Commission, 
may exempt a tract of land from the wastewater lot/acreage fees, provided the area is not likely to 
be served with wastewater services within the next 15 years. The applicable fees are approximately 
$50,384.98.  On-site sewage facilities (septic systems), in conformance with City-County Health 
Department is proposed with the development on the property. A waiver for wastewater construction 
was submitted concurrently.  On May 17, 2024, Planning Commission approved the waiver for 
wastewater construction, however a tie vote resulted in no recommendation on the waiver request 
of the wastewater lot/acreage fee. 
 

The subject property shown as Exhibit A, known as the proposed London Ranch Estates, is near 
the London area on County Road (CR) 22, between CR’s 51 and 49. The Planning Commission 
conditionally approved the final plat for London Ranch Estates, 22PL1186, in February 2023. The 
property is an 87.076-acre portion of a 169.367-acre tract in the north half of Section 11 in the 
Laureles Farm Tracts, previously platted and approved by Nueces County Commissioners in 1914.  
London Ranch Estates is zoned RS-22 (Single-Family 22) and proposes 108 buildable lots. The City 
of Corpus Christi annexed this area, including a portion of County Road 22, in December of 2023.   
 
STAFF ANALYSIS AND FINDINGS 

 

Wastewater trust fund fees are a platting requirement as per UDC 8.5.2 with the purpose of 
collecting fees being outlined in UDC 8.5.2.A.: 

1. “To encourage the orderly development of subdivisions within and 
surrounding the City; 

2. To establish an equitable system of spreading the cost of 
wastewater line extensions required for development pursuant to 
the Wastewater Master Plan; 

3. To establish an equitable system that can be affected by the 
establishment of trust funds to be administered by the City for the 
purpose of carrying out orderly wastewater line extensions; and 

22PL1186 London Ranch Estates 
Request for a Waiver of the Wastewater Lot/Acreage Fee Requirement 

in Sections 8.5.2.G. of the Unified Development Code 



2 

 

4. To establish a system of credits and reimbursements for 
developer-installed wastewater line extensions meeting the 
Wastewater Master Plan when the developer is a non-taxing entity 
that is contributing acreage or lot fees under this Unified 
Development Code. Wastewater infrastructure funded by Tax 
Increment Financing, Special Assessment District, or other public 
financing is ineligible for wastewater trust fund reimbursement, 
unless approved by City Council.” 

 

UDC 8.5.2.G.: Exemptions states that wastewater trust fund fees may be exempted in areas 
determined to not likely to be served by City wastewater services within the next 15 years, 
separated procedurally by the amount of fees to be exempted: 

 The Director of Development Services may make such 
determination when the fees of the area being exempted are 
$50,000 or less.  

 Planning Commission shall make its recommendation to the 
City Council, which shall make the final determination 
whenever the fees of the area being exempted are more than 
$50,000.  

 
The fees for this plat surpass $50,000, so the fee waiver exemption process is as follows: 

“City Council, with the advice of the Assistant City Manager of 
Development Services and the Planning Commission, may make 
such determinations.” 

 
Although the UDC does not explicitly state what criteria should be considered to determine if the 
area is or is not likely to be served, the following planning analyses are applicable: 

 Future Land Use 

 Plan CC Comprehensive Plan 

 Area Development Plans 

 Master Plans 

These items have been summarized in the Zoning Report 1023-02 presented with the annexation 
of London Ranch Estates. Portions of the report have been included in Exhibit D.  

 

Historically, the City of Corpus Christi has continued to annex land near the London area (Exhibit 
F). London Ranch Estates is immediately outside of the London Area Development Plan (ADP), so 
an urban planning analysis of the area is not currently included in London ADP. As a result, all land 
usage is listed as undesignated. 

 

Recently adopted Master Plans incorporate the Area Development Plans into their master planning 
of city utilities. Although it is probable that imminently annexed land outside of the London Area 
was not considered for the Wastewater Master plans, Pape Dawson still identifies the London area 
as requiring significant infrastructure updates based on the neighboring area, including a trunk line, 
as shown on Exhibit H.  

 
The need for a waiver is to be demonstrated to the Planning Commission’s satisfaction. Per UDC 
3.8.3.D., the waiver may be approved, approved with conditions, or denied after consideration of 
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the following factors:  

1. The granting of the waiver shall not be detrimental to the public 
health, safety or general welfare, or be injurious to other property 
in the area, or to the City in administering this Unified Development 
Code;  

2. The conditions that create the need for the waiver shall not 
generally apply to other property in the vicinity.  

3. Application of a provision of this Unified Development Code will 
render subdivision of land unfeasible; or  

4. The granting of the waiver would not substantially conflict with the 
Comprehensive Plan and the purposes of this Unified 
Development Code. 

 
During the Capital Improvement process, including building or reimbursing wastewater 
infrastructure construction to service the London area, failing to collect funds from an area that 
would be served by city wastewater services may be considered adverse to the city’s finances. It is 
not conclusive if the granting of the waiver will be injurious to the City, however, it would be 
contradictory to the purposes listed in 8.5.2.A.   
 
Should a property owner believe fees were paid under the conditions applicable in UDC 8.5.2.G.: 
Exemptions, a refund may be considered by City Council after ten years (but no more than twenty 
years) of filing the plat if: 
 

1. The petitioners are the property owners of lots for which a 
wastewater lot or acreage fee has been paid; 

2. No wastewater lines serve the petitioners’ property from the City’s 
wastewater system, from another governmental entity, or from 
existing wastewater control districts, or authorities which provide 
for the collection or treatment of sanitary sewage; and 

3. The property is not likely to be served with such wastewater lines 
within five years. 

 

Staff Findings on Waiver of the Wastewater Lot/Acreage Fee Requirement 

 

Developments in the surrounding area, including but not limited to, Charlotte Estates and 
Gemini Acres, are also served by septic systems, lessening the likelihood of a trunk line 
being constructed in the next 15 years.   

 

Furthermore, London Ranch Estates has not requested reimbursement from the trust funds, 
water nor wastewater, where these lot/acreage fees are deposited.  London Ranch Estates 
extended water service to the area by constructing approximately 1.45 miles of 8” waterline, 
and are subject to the water lot/acreage fees, $23,343.32, to be paid prior to plat recordation. 
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STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 

Staff recommends approval of the request for waiver of wastewater infrastructure fees per 
Section 8.5.2.G.  

 

City Council may choose to follow or decline staff’s recommendation and move to approve, approve 
with conditions, or deny the waiver request.  
 
 
LIST OF SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 
 

Exhibit A – Final Plat of London Ranch Estates (Conditionally Approved February 2023) 
Exhibit B – Waiver Request Application 
Exhibit C – Waiver Letter Request 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Exhibit A 
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Exhibit B 
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Exhibit C 



 

 


